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The Grenada Development Bank (GDB) reaffirmed its unwavering commitment to financing transformative 

and sustainable development as Grenada and the world emerged from COVID-19 restrictions.  The 

past few years were challenging for businesses in Grenada, Carriacou and Petite Martinique with the 

pandemic testing the nation’s resilience, underscoring the importance of sustainable development.

At the GDB, our efforts in 2022 focused on recovery, with a renewed emphasis on sustainability through 

strategic initiatives, partnerships, and impactful projects.  Among the highlights was the launch of 

the Enhanced Direct Access Climate Adaptation Revolving Fund which provided concessional funding 

to citizens to implement climate resilience projects in their homes and businesses.  This programme 

came at a time when once rare extreme weather events became more commonplace and record 

temperatures were experienced all over the world.

Small and medium enterprises are the backbone of Grenada’s economy, and supporting them has been 

a cornerstone of our mission.  In 2022, the GDB continued its SME financing program, providing low-

interest loans and technical assistance to local businesses.  Additionally, recognizing the importance 

of education in sustainable development, the GDB continued to invest in educational packages with 

lowered interest rates.

As we look ahead, GDB remains committed to its vision of a sustainable and thriving Grenada.  Our 

strategic focus will continue to revolve around financing projects that drive economic growth and 

social development.  The organization will leverage technology and innovation to enhance the services 

offered and ensure that clients receive the best possible support.

Committed to Financing Transformative, Sustainable Development
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VISION, MISSION AND 
CORE VALUES

To be the leading provider of development 

financing in Grenada, Carriacou and Petite 

Martinique.

Our Vision

To be an innovative and viable development 

organization, providing high quality financial and 

related services to the state of Grenada, with the 

aim of fostering socioeconomic development.

Our Mission 

Development Focus:

Fostering the socio-economic development of the 

country is the reason why we exist.

Customer Focus:

We continuously strive to exceed our customers’ 

expectations.

Innovation:

We offer products and services that would meet the 

changing needs of our customers.

Professionalism: 

At all times, we would demonstrate high levels of integrity, 

respect for others, confidentiality, reliability, honesty and 

objectivity in our dealings.

Result Oriented:

We work as a team and are performance driven.

Accountability:

We are responsible for our actions that influence the lives 

of our customers, fellow workers and the resources that 

are in our care.

Motivation and Recognition:

We encourage and reward all staff for their 

accomplishments and promote continuous personal 

development.

Our Core Values
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CHAIRMAN’S LETTER 
OF TRANSMITTAL

The Honourable Dennis Cornwall
Minister for Finance,
Financial Complex
The Carenage
St. George

Dear Minister,

Pursuant to Cap. 129, Section 18 of the Grenada Development Bank Act, I have the 
honour to submit to you the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the 
Bank for the Financial Year ended December 31, 2022.

Yours faithfully,

Andrea St. Bernard
CHAIRMAN
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

International travel, which had been severely restricted 

during the height of the pandemic, also saw a rebound.  

With fewer testing and quarantine requirements, global 

mobility increased, enabling a resurgence in both leisure 

and business travel.  Countries that rely heavily on tourism 

began welcoming visitors once again, contributing to 

the revitalization of local economies.

Despite lingering challenges such as inflation and 

unemployment, 2022 marked a turning point in the 

journey back to pre-pandemic normalcy, setting the 

stage for a more robust and sustained recovery.  The 

Minister for Finance in his review of the fiscal performance 

of the country said the economy grew by 6% in 2022 

and was forecasted to expand further by 3.6% in 2023 

underpinned by continued strong recovery in tourism 

and robust construction activities.  The Minister further 

stated that the government’s areas of strategic focus in 

the coming year were Health and Wellness, Education 

and Training, Agriculture and the Marine industry, Physical 

and Digital Infrastructure, Culture and the Creative Sector, 

Energy Transition and the Environment.

The Banking Sector

According to the Eastern Caribbean Economic and 

Financial Review- December 2022, economic activity in 

the ECCU accelerated, as the regional economy continued 

to recover from the pandemic-induced setbacks from 

the past two years.  Recovery was driven by robust 

expansion in the tourism industry in 2022 relative to 

the previous year, however, consumer prices rose 

during 2022, attributed to higher fuel and commodity 

prices, which were associated with the ongoing military 

conflict in Ukraine.

Emerging Out of the COVID 19 Pandemic

In 2022, the world saw significant strides toward recovery 

as the lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic began to 

fade.   In Grenada, one of the most impactful developments 

was the lifting of the remaining public health measures, 

both at the domestic level and for international travel.  

Restrictions on social gatherings, business operations, and 

public events were relaxed, allowing economic activities to 

regain momentum.  This easing of measures was a vital 

step toward normalizing everyday life, with industries such 

as tourism, hospitality, and retail, in particular, benefiting 

from the resurgence in demand.
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During the review period, deposits and credit in the ECCU 

banking system expanded along with the estimated improvement 

in real sector activity.  Following marginal growth of 0.7% in 

2021, credit rose more quickly at 3.5% at the end of 2022 

to $11,194m.

Growth in credit stemmed from an increase in loans to 

households (4.8%), mainly mortgages, while business credit 

declined by 3.8%, reflective of higher investment costs from 

inflation and the subsequent uncertainty of the economic 

outlook.  Deposits continued to expand in 2022 (4.3%), 

although more moderately relative to the previous year (9.9%).

The major contributors to the increase in deposits were 

transferable (demand) EC-currency deposits (17.1%) and 

foreign currency deposits (13.0%).  Conversely, other EC-

currency deposits, registered a year-on year contraction of 

4.3%, reflecting in part, a shift by depositors to short-term 

demand deposits as inflationary pressures contributed to 

higher spending.

Asset quality of the banking system deteriorated for a third 

consecutive year as the ratio of non-performing loans stood at 

12.2% in 2022 compared with 11.9% at the end of 2021.  The 

ratio was in excess of the ECCB’s 5.0% prudential benchmark.  

This performance signaled that the banking sector has to 

continuously get creative to encourage consumer credit 

while ensuring that mechanisms are put in place to safeguard 

against non-performing loans.

GDB’s Performance

Recognizing the nation’s need for capital to support recovery 

efforts, the Grenada Development Bank continued to fund 

critical sectors of the economy including housing, education, 

services and Agriculture.  Therefore, management of the GDB 

made efforts to approve more loans during the period.  Loan 

approvals totaled XCD 29,170,384, representing a significant 

increase over the past five years moving from XCD 15,986,833 

in 2018.  This represented an increase of approximately 82%.

While disbursements dipped slightly, the overall portfolio 

remained strong at a value of approximately XCD 94.62 

million as of December 31, 2022, representing an increase 

of 2.87% over 2021’s balance of XCD 91.98 million.  For 

the five-year period 2018 to 2022, the loan portfolio grew 

by 49.06% moving from 63.48 million to 94.62 million.  

Mortgages continued to dominate the loan portfolio 

signaling the serious need for housing, while allocation to 

the business sector remained strong.

As it relates to the quality of the portfolio, in 2018, Non-

performing Loans (NPLs) were 4.59% while in 2022 it 

stood at 2.24% representing a reduction of 51.20%.  This 

achievement spoke to the bank’s prudent fiscal management 

and diligence in working with customers who become 

delinquent for a number of reasons.  2.24% remains well 

below the ECCB prudential benchmark of 5% and the ECCU 

ratio of 12.2% in 2022.

The bank’s mission is to be an innovative and viable 

development organization providing high quality financial 

and related services to the state of Grenada, with the aim 

of fostering socio-economic development.  While profit 

is not the main objective of the bank, it is an indicator of 

the financial health of the bank.  Though profit dipped 

slightly from $1.45 million in 2021 to $1.35 million, it was 

the 15th consecutive year of operating profits which is a 

testament to the dedication of management and staff.  

Their hard work was recognized through the payment of 

performance bonuses.

Figure 2:
Value of Loan Approvals 2018 - 2022
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Climate Finance

In 2022, the GDB achieved a major milestone with the 

launch of the Enhanced Direct Access Climate Adaptation 

Revolving Fund (EDA), in March. This facility provides funding 

for vulnerable households and MSMEs in Grenada to make 

climate resilience interventions through a concessionary 

loan product. 

The EDA, financed by the Green Climate Fund (GCF), was 

piloted in three (3) Eastern Caribbean Islands and implemented 

by the Department of the Environment, Antigua. Output 4 

aims to reduce the climate change vulnerability of private 

buildings- specifically homes and MSMEs. The interventions 

include renewable energy and energy efficiency, erosion and 

flood control, health and vector control, water management 

and structural adjustments in buildings. The EDA Project is 

being implemented by the Government of Grenada through 

the Ministry of Finance and the Ministry for Climate Resilience. 

Work continued under the Climate-Resilient Water Sector 

in Grenada (GCREWS) Challenge Fund for commercial 

water users in the Tourism and Agriculture sectors.  The 

Challenge Fund for Tourism aims to promote efficiency in 

the use of water by providing equipment grants of 80% to 

hotels and guest houses for the adoption of water efficient 

solutions, such as rain water harvesting systems and grey 

water recycling. 

The Challenge Fund for Agriculture seeks to increase the use 

of innovative technology such as drip and micro-sprinkler 

irrigation systems, rain water harvesting and shade houses, 

which will bolster the agriculture sector and reduce climate 

change impacts. In 2022, over 200 farms in Grenada and 

Carriacou were assessed, and designs completed for the 

required systems. Farmers welcomed the decision of the 

GCF to increase the equipment grant from 50% to 100% 

financing.

Appreciation

I would like to extend our heartfelt appreciation to the entire 

staff of the Grenada Development Bank for their unwavering 

commitment and hard work reflected in the 2022 Annual 

Report.  The team’s dedication was instrumental in driving 

the bank’s continued growth and success, even in the face 

of challenges.  Looking ahead to 2023, I am confident that 

the staff’s continued dedication will further strengthen the 

GDB’s impact on the national development of Grenada, 

Carriacou and Petite Martinique.
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GLOSSARY

Non-performing Ratio: Total principal balance of all non-

performing loans as a percentage of the total loan portfolio.

Total Contamination Ratio:  Total principal balance of all 

loans in arrears as a percentage of the total loan portfolio.

Total Arrears Ratio:  Total arrears as a percentage of the 

total loan portfolio.

Collection Ratio:  Actual amount collected as a percentage 

of the total amount due.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TO PLAN

The GDB extrapolates its annual Priority Objectives from its 

Strategic Plan and develops a corporate blueprint through 

a comprehensive budgeting process.  The following table 

provides a comparison of key financial indicators for 2022:

MANAGEMENT 
DISCUSSION AND 
ANALYSIS
This Management Discussion and Analysis 

(MD&A) is provided to facilitate an assessment 

of the Grenada Development Bank’s financial 

performance and operating results for the 

year ended December 31, 2022.  This position 

is compared with the Priority Objectives and/

or prior year’s results and should be read in 

conjunction with the audited consolidated 

financial statements.  Unless otherwise indicated, 

all financial information in this MD&A has been 

prepared in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and all 

amounts are expressed in Eastern Caribbean 

dollars.
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Ministry of Finance, Economic Development, Physical 

Development, Public Utilities and Energy & the Ministry 

of Tourism, Civil Aviation, Climate Resilience and the 

Environment. 

The primary objective of the Revolving Loan Programme 

is to provide the opportunity for privately owned 

physical assets of vulnerable populations to be more 

resilient to climate variability and change through 

concessional micro-financing. 

The priority groups included single-parent households, 

people with disabilities, and individuals who are 

employed in specific priority sectors, such as first 

responders. The climate adaptation interventions 

eligible for funding include: efficient water management, 

sustainable building practices and climate-smart 

building retrofits, flood and erosion control, structural 

adjustments that increase climate change resilience, 

renewable energy systems, health and vector control 

and energy-efficient solutions. 

Performance Measures 2022 
Actuals

2022 
Strategic 

Plan

2021 
Actuals

Growth

Total Assets $113.7M - $99.99M

Asset Growth 14% - 7.35%

Advances Principal $94.6M $98.5M $88.5M

Advances Growth 6.9% 11% 10.9%

Credit Quality

Non-performing Ratio 2.24% <5% 2.11%

Total Contamination Ratio 14.03% <12% 9.33%

Total Arrears Ratio 2.28% ≤10% 2.79%

Collection Ratio 78% 85% 78%

Leverage

Debt to Equity 3.0:1 - 2.75:1

Interest coverage 1.6 - 1.7

Profitability and Return

Net Profit $1.35M - $1.45M

Return on Assets (ROA) 1.26% 1% 1.5%

			 

CLIMATE FINANCING

In March 2022, the Grenada Development Bank (GDB) launched 

the Enhanced Direct Access Climate Adaptation Revolving Fund, 

signaling a significant stride toward fostering climate resilience by 

offering concessional financing tailored to vulnerable households 

and businesses. This initiative was designed to support the 

integration of climate-resilient interventions, aligning with the 

Government of Grenada’s strategic priority to improve the nation’s 

preparedness and adaptability to climate-related challenges.

 

The project, financed by the Green Climate Fund (GCF), is being 

implemented by the Government of Grenada through the 

EDA Water Storage Tank Project
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Practical examples of these interventions include addressing 

challenges faced by individuals or businesses located 

near waterways or on hillsides, where issues such as land 

slippage or flooding arise due to inadequate drainage. Other 

measures involve installing water storage tanks, roof repairs, 

and adopting solar PV systems for renewable energy. The 

maximum loan amount under the project is EC$200,000 

with project funding totaling US $1.990 million.

At 31st December 2022, US$515K was committed, representing 

a total of twenty-nine (29) approved projects. The majority of 

financing requests were for Flood and Erosion Control (40%) 

followed by Structural Upgrades (36.7%) and Renewable Energy 

(14.6%), which together accounted for 91.3% of projects 

financed. Of the loans approved, 59% of the beneficiaries 

were female, 31% joint borrowers while 10% were male. 

 

Challenge Fund for Tourism and 
Agriculture

Activities in the GCREWS (Grenada Climate Resilient Water 

Sector) project continued through the Challenge Fund for 

Tourism and Agriculture. These initiatives aim to enhance 

water efficiency and sustainability practices across two of 

Grenada’s key economic sectors, building resilience in the 

face of climate change.

The Fund, through grants from the Green Climate Fund 

(GCF), facilitates water auditing and solution design at no 

cost to the beneficiary and the purchase of water-efficient 

equipment. As part of the Challenge Fund for Tourism, 

hotels and guesthouses are subsidized with equipment 

grants for bathroom upgrades, rainwater harvesting 

systems, or greywater recycling. Similarly, the Challenge 

Fund for Agriculture subsidizes equipment for drip and 

micro sprinkler irrigation systems, rainwater harvesting 

systems, and shade houses.

In 2022, the Supervisory Board for the programme approved 

significant changes to the financing mechanism for both 

Challenge Funds. This included the advancement of the 

equipment grant to beneficiaries under special conditions, 

as well as adjustments to the maximum grants allowed for 

bathroom retrofits, and rainwater harvesting.

A series of workshops were also held during the year for 

Extension Officers (EO) and Extension Assistants (EA) of the 

Ministry of Agriculture, Lands and Forestry (MoALF) and the 

Ministry of Carriacou and Petite Martinique Affairs. A total 

of twenty-seven (27) farms were audited in Carriacou, while 

approximately two hundred and ten (210) were audited in 

Grenada during the year. 

Following a specific request, the Green Climate Fund 

approved an increase of the equipment grant from 50% to 

100% financing for farmers after several challenges were 

highlighted, including the high upfront investment and 

recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic.

EcoMicro Programme

In 2022, the Grenada Development Bank concluded its 

participation in the ECO Micro programme aimed at building 

climate resilience in medium, small and micro enterprises 

and low-income households through the development of 

green finance products supporting access to renewable 

energy, energy efficiency solutions, and climate change 

adaptation measures.

EcoMicro was executed by the Inter-American Development 

Bank’s IDB Lab and co-financed by Global Affairs Canada, IDB 

Lab, and the Nordic Development Fund. The components 

included the design and implementation of green finance 

products, the development of climate risk assessment tools, 

an assessment of the bank’s environmental impact, the 
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climate change vulnerability of its loan portfolio, and the 

creation of knowledge management and communication 

tools.

As a result of the programme, the GDB was able to develop 

new products, including a renewable energy/energy efficiency 

loan product for residential and commercial buildings, create 

a climate vulnerability reduction plan for its loan portfolio, 

develop a climate risk assessment tool to be used during 

project appraisal and produce a scale strategy for future 

climate finance initiatives. Other key outcomes include 

capacity building of GDB staff in climate risk, climate change 

mitigation and adaptation solutions, a greening blueprint to 

reduce the Bank’s environmental footprint and promoting 

awareness of the implications of climate change on key 

economic sectors.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS OF 2022 PRIORITY 
OBJECTIVES

The Board of Directors approved a number of financial and 

non-financial objectives for 2022 in accordance with the 

bank’s strategic plan.  The following are some of the bank’s 

major highlights/achievements as it relates to the key areas 

of funding, customer service and employee satisfaction.

Funding

The bank received the following funding in 2022:

	 The bank received a new line of credit from the 

Government of Grenada through an EC $15-million-

dollar loan of which $10 million was designated 

for housing and $5 million for education.  Of the 

$5 million dollars, $1 million was designated for 

the Special Student Loan facility which is geared at 

assisting vulnerable households in accessing tertiary 

education opportunities.  The loan was provided at 

a concessional interest rate of 1% to allow the GDB 

to lend for home mortgages for lower and middle 

income earners and for education loans at 4%.

	 The GDB also received the first disbursement of 

EC$ 1,596, 790.80 from the Green Climate Fund 

for the Enhanced Direct Access Climate Adaptation 

Revolving Fund.  This funding allowed the GDB to start 

disbursing loans to customers for climate financing 

interventions in their homes and businesses.

	 Additionally, the GDB received a disbursement of 

$808,505 from the Green Climate Fund through the 

United Nations Office for Project Services (UNOPS) 

to fund various climate finance programmes such as 

the Private Sector Readiness Project which focuses 

on preparing Grenada’s private sector to implement 

climate financing investment in their business models.

ATTRACTING NEW CUSTOMERS AND 
MAINTAINING EXISTING ONES

	 The Credit Department conducted a comprehensive 

review of its loan products which was presented to the 

Board of Directors.  The Board made the decision to 

defer decision making on the review while the bank 

was involved in a new strategic planning process.

	 In 2022, the bank maintained its focus on monitoring 

application processing times in alignment with the 

timeframes established in its credit policy.  The goal 

was to achieve a minimum approval rate of 95% 

within the designated timeframe.  The bank achieved 

a rate of 94.37%, falling just 0.63 percentage points 

short of the target.
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	 A customer satisfaction survey was again conducted to ensure 

that the bank maintains the highest levels of professional 

service.  The overall customer satisfaction rate was 94.6%, 

just .4% shy of the 95% objective set at the beginning of 

2022.  Additionally, the survey also showed improvement 

in customer satisfaction levels for the loan application 

process and loan officers to 92.4% (90.3% in 2021) and 

98.6% (93.5% in 2021) respectively.  These rates were the 

highest recorded by the bank since 2018.  This exceptional 

achievement is a testament to the continued investment 

the bank places on customer service.  In 2022, the bank 

conducted in-house customer experience training under 

the theme, ‘Revolutionary Customer Care for the “The New 

Normal” atmosphere’.  The training focused on attitude, 

business knowledge and customer centered service.

ENHANCE EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION AND 
PRODUCTIVITY

	 At the heart of our bank’s success lies a steadfast commitment 

to employee satisfaction.  The GDB believes that a motivated 

and engaged workforce is the foundation of exceptional 

customer service and sustainable growth.  The aim is to 

ensure that every team member feels valued, respected, 

and inspired to contribute to the bank’s vision with passion 

and purpose.  For another consecutive year, the bank 

paid a performance bonus to reward management and 

staff for contributing to the bank’s financial success.  This 

payment was based on the bank’s achievement of a net 

profit of EC$1.35 million dollars and a Return on Assets 

(ROA) of 1.26%.

	 At the end of 2022, an in-house event was held to celebrate 

the achievements of 2022 and recognize management 

and staff for extraordinary performances.

Conclusion

The Grenada Development Bank remains steadfast 

in its commitment to delivering exceptional customer 

satisfaction, fostering a positive and supportive 

environment for employees, and proactively seeking 

new opportunities to drive sustainable growth.  By 

placing our customers at the heart of our operations, 

investing in our people, and maintaining a forward-

thinking approach, we are well-positioned to navigate 

challenges and seize emerging opportunities.
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Introduction

Providing equal employment opportunities (EEO) and being an 
employer of choice is key to the success of any organization.  The 
human resource function is centered around people, making 
employees the greatest asset of the Grenada Development Bank.  
It is therefore important to attract and retain talent, offering 
employees meaningful careers and helping them succeed, whilst 
delivering the best to our customers daily.

The Human Resources Department believes that diversity and 
inclusion are important ingredients in productivity, learning and 
development.  This allows the bank to better reflect the customers 
and communities we serve, and also drives employee engagement, 
which is critical to our continued success.

Learning and Development

During the period under review the department 
continued to focus on training, development and 
retention to improve our delivery of customer service 
excellence.  Our major training initiatives included 
the following:  

Credit Appraisal
Employees were engaged in Credit Appraisal training 
geared at building institutional capacity.  To this date, 
credit risk remains a major concern for financial 
institutions.  Once employees are better able to 
understand and analyze a potential borrower’s 
creditworthiness, the more likely they are to minimize 
risk and lower the financial provisions required for 
bad debt.

HUMAN RESOURCES
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The training objectives were as follows:

	 Credit risk analysis process to assess borrowers in 
real time

	 Various aspects of financial statement analysis, 
including ratio and cash flow analysis

	 Business plan review

	 Structuring of loan products in a competitive way

	 Identification and solving of problem loans

At the end of the training, Credit Officers were equipped 
with the necessary skills to make more informed credit-
related decisions.

Leadership Development
As the world evolves, the bank recognizes the need to broaden 
its perspectives and redefine leadership by embracing an 
inclusive model focused on outcomes and reshaping our 
views on who is seen as a leader.

Leading in an era of constant disruption and times of crises 
requires a distinct set of competencies and these include, 
but are not limited to, a combination of variables such 
as visionary and entrepreneurial skills, innovation-driven 
mindset, and experimentation.

As part of the organization’s transformative process, employees 
were exposed to the disruptive leadership series held under 
the theme, ‘Redefining Leadership’.  The overall idea was 
to explore how organizational members can redefine the 
leadership model to create impact by looking for new ways 
to revolutionize processes and the overall business function 
through better solutions and smarter choices.
  

Personal Financial Planning and Wealth Creation 
Team members participated in wealth creation and money 
management sessions aimed at expanding their knowledge 
on avoiding poor financial decisions and building financial 
stability.  Focus was placed on the pillars of financial 
structure including assets, debts, income, and expenses.  
Measuring and comparing these can help determine the 
state of one’s finances.

Safety and Health 
During the period under review the Bank continued to be 
proactive in its approach to managing workplace safety and 
health.  The intent is to prevent accidents and injuries to 
staff arising out of, linked with or occurring during the course 
of work by minimizing as far as reasonably practicable the 
causes of hazards inherent to the workplace.

Education

Recognizing the importance of education in the development 
of our communities and the increasing cost of funding 
educational pursuit, school supplies vouchers were presented 
to employees whose children were successful in both the 
Caribbean Primary Exit Exam and Caribbean Secondary 
Education Certificate (CSEC).

Community Outreach

The social arm of the Bank partnered with the Leo Club 
of St. Andrews for the hosting of a soup kitchen in Laca 
Bacaye, St. Andrews.

Farewell

During the period under review the bank bid farewell to 
General Manager Mr. Mervyn Lord and Office Attendant 
Mrs. Jacqueline Bowen. Mr. Lord selflessly gave fifteen (15) 
years of stellar contribution to the organization, thirteen of 
which as the General Manager.   Under his leadership the 
bank experienced significant transformation in its overall 
operations.  In addition, he strongly affirmed to practicing 
the principle of team spirit and championed employee 
satisfaction.   Mrs. Bowen gave twenty-five (25) years of 
unwavering service to the bank as the Office Attendant.
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Above and Beyond

	 Natasha Joseph

	 Calesha Noel

	 Chriselle Benjamin Jerome

	 Stacy-Anne Simon-Simpson

	 Irva Frank-Roberts

Employee Wellness 

Wellness affects how an employee thinks, feels, acts, 
handles stress, and relates to other people.  Being 
mindful of this, the Bank placed corporate wellness 
at the fore front and engaged in coping sessions for 
employees and their immediate family members.   The 
sessions were centered around work life integration, 
relationship, anxiety and handling depression.

Industrial Relations 

The industrial climate between the bank and bargaining 
unit remained stable with both parties being able to 
amicably resolve issues.

Staffing:

During the period under review, the following persons 
were employed:

	 Donlyn Telesford

	 Alexander Leid

	 Akira Morain 

At the end of December 2022, the Bank staffing 
complement was as follows:

Managerial

GDB’s central operation

Small Business Development Fund (SBDF)/
Grenada Youth Enterprise Initiative (GYEI)

05

21

07

Employee Recognition 

Employees were also recognized for their tenure and yeoman 
service to the bank at the end of year staff function for their 
commitment, dedication and for delivering sterling service 
over the years.  The awardees were:

The following team members contribution was also highlighted 
for surpassing expectations in their respective roles and 
responsibilities.

Rising Star

	 Lyndonna Harford

On the Spot 

	 Reisa Modoo

	 Jinaele Douglas

	 Trevor Baptiste

	 Shamika Alexander

MERVYN LORD
General Manager

CHRISELLE BENJAMIN JEROME
Communications Officer

CALESHA NOEL
Loans Officer

JINAELE DOUGLAS
Human Resources Assistant



Grenada Development Bank

18

Loan Approvals 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, loan approvals totaled XCD 29,170,384.  Of this figure, Housing accounted for 61%, 

Education 16%, Services 13% with the other sectors namely; Agriculture, Fishing, Manufacturing, Transport and Renewable 

Energy/ Energy Efficiency accounting for 9%.  The distribution of loan approvals for 2022 is presented in the chart below 

with comparatives for 2021.

Loan approvals increased significantly over the past five years moving from XCD 15,986,833 in 2018 to XCD 29,170,384 in 

2022, an increase of approximately 82% with average annual approvals of XCD 20,995,228.

CREDIT AND LOAN ANALYSIS

Figure 2:
Value of Loan Approvals 2018 - 2022
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Loan Disbursements:

Disbursements in 2022 totaled XCD18,512,804 compared 

to XCD 20,838,476 in 2021.  For the period 2018 to 2022 

disbursements fluctuated annually with a low of XCD 

15,505,312, high of XCD 20,838,476.75 and annual average 

of approximately 18.4 million.

Figure 1:
Loan approvals by sector for 2022 and 2021
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Loan Portfolio Growth

The following figure illustrates GDB’s loans portfolio growth 

over the last five years.

The total portfolio was valued at approximately XCD 94.62 

million as of December 31, 2022, representing an increase 

of 2.87% over 2021’s balance of XCD 91.98 million.  For the 

five-year period 2018 to 2022, the loan portfolio grew by 

49.06% moving from 63.48 million to 94.62 million.

The Loan portfolio continues to be skewed with home 

mortgages accounting for over 50% of the total value of 

loans in the portfolio.  Home mortgages, expressed as a 

percentage of the total loan portfolio, increased significantly 

from 41.06% in 2018 to 57.5% in 2022.  For the same period, 

allocation to the business sectors moved from 39.83% to 

30.80% and education moved from 18.57% to 11.46%.  

Personal loans, which are afforded to staff accounts only, 

accounted for just 2%.

 

Credit Quality

Past due loans and advances
Loans with delinquency greater than 90 days are automatically 

transferred to Non-Performing Loans (NPLs).  In 2018, NPLs 

were 4.59% while in 2022 it stood at 2.24% representing 

a reduction of 51.20%.

Figure 3:
Value of Loan Disbursements 2018 - 2022
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Figure 4:
Loan 2018 - 2022
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Figure 5:
Portfolio Distribution By Value
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Figure 6:
NPLs 2018 - 2022
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Other than Personal loans, Manufacturing was the best 

performing sector for the Bank, with 0% NPLs followed by 

Tourism, Agriculture and Home mortgages with NPLs of 

0.17%, 0.92% and 1.46% respectively.  Education, Fishing, 

Services and Transportation all had NPLs over 5% for which 

the benchmark is 5%.

Figure 7:
NPLs By Sector
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Financial year 2022 marked yet another profitable period for the Grenada Development Bank despite the risks and 

negative impacts experienced throughout the world.  In order to maintain this profitable status, various measures were 

employed including but not limited to constant monitoring of the loan portfolio, customer satisfaction, cost minimization 

and control, budgeting and analysis of results throughout the year.

$1.35M
NET PROFIT

$7.03M
TOTAL REVENUE

1.26%
RETURN ON

ASSETS

2022 Highlights
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

NET PROFIT  1,350,793  1,451,447  632,709  1,042,659  561,324 

TOTAL REVENUE  7,028,115  6,704,129  5,872,192  6,103,915  4,781,493 

INTEREST INCOME  5,835,859  5,685,868  5,250,027  5,016,850  4,107,637 

TOTAL EXPENDITURE  5,677,322  5,252,682  5,239,483  5,061,256  4,220,169 

TOTAL ASSETS  113,713,953  99,988,397  93,146,380  89,377,040  74,706,160 

TOTAL EQUITY  27,581,714  26,355,185  24,947,526  25,497,009  24,496,449

Figure 8:
Net Profits 2018-2022
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Figure 9:
2022 Revenue Compared with Previous Years
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PROFITABLITY

The 2022 results show a net profit of $1.35M, a decrease 

of $100.7K {7%} compared to the 2021 profit of $1.45M.   

Notwithstanding this decrease, 2022 marked the 15th 

consecutive year that the Grenada Development Bank 

achieved operating profits.

The bank achieved a Return on Assets (ROA) ratio of 1.26%.   

This ROA is 0.26 percentage points higher than the 1% 

benchmark stipulated by the Caribbean Development Bank 

(CDB) in the loan agreement signed in December 2015 for 

the US $10M line of credit.

REVENUE

Total Revenue increased by $324.00K [4.8%] from $6.70M in 

2021 to $7.03M in 2022.  This marginal increase was due to:

	 interest income which increased by $149.99K {2.6%}

	 miscellaneous income namely bank fees associated 

with new loans, admin fees and premature closure 

penalty fees which increased by $333.23K {71.9%}.

	 rental income which increased by $27.45K {15.6%}

 



Grenada Development Bank

22

Interest income was the main component of revenue and 

accounted for 83% or $5.84M of total revenue.  The other 

categories which include recoveries from bad debts, interest 

on investment, rental income and miscellaneous income, 

accounted for the remaining $1.19M in revenue.

EXPENDITURE 

The total expenditure figure of $5.68M represented an increase 

of $424.64K {7%} from $5.25M in 2021.  This increase was 

the result of an increase in staff costs of $159.35K {8%}, 

interest expense $153.12K {7%}, non-personnel expenses 

$110.72K {15%}, directors fees $27.93K{54%}, depreciation 

$10.96K {14%}, pension costs $10.14K {14%} and  offset 

by a decrease in expected credit losses of $47.58K {16%}.

Interest expense which accounted for 39% of total expenditure, 

increased by $153.1K {7%} from $2.07M in 2021 to $2.22M 

in 2022.  This was due to higher borrowing costs especially 

on the Caribbean Development Bank (CDB) credit line.  It 

is noteworthy that all loan obligations were paid in full and 

in a timely manner in 2022.

Staff costs, which accounted for 37% of total expenditure, 

increased by $159.35K {8%} from $1.94M in 2021 to $2.10M 

in 2022.  This increase was due to salary increases for 2022, 

merit payments and end of year (2022) bonus paid to staff.

CASH FLOWS

Net cash used in operating activities in 2022 was $5.21M 

compared to $7.36M in 2021.  This was determined by the 

amount and timing of cash paid by customers, disbursements 

to customers, payments to suppliers as well as the nature 

and amount of the non-cash items.  Cash used for investing 

activities was $2.41M.

  

Cash provided by financing activities in 2022 was $12.02M 

compared to $5.71M in 2021.  During 2022 dividends were 

paid to the GDB’s sole shareholder the Government of 

Grenada totaling $120.6K.  This payment marked the 7th 

year that the Bank declared and paid dividends.

Figure 11:
Expenditure 2022 - Compared With Other Years
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Figure 12:
Expenditure Categories - 2022
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In addition, all principal repayments were made on all loans 

as agreed and a new line of credit in the amount of $15M 

was obtained from the Government of Grenada.  The overall 

increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year 2022 was 

$4.40M compared to a net cash decrease in 2021 of $1.44M.  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2022 amounted to 

$8.51M.

FINANCIAL POSITION

2022 2021 Change from
2021 -2022

 ($M) ($M)  

Total Assets 113.71 99.99 14% increase

Total Liabilities 83.32 72.50 15% increase

Net Assets 30.39 27.48 11% increase

Retained Earnings 5.71 4.81 19% increase

Debt to Equity 3.0:1 2.8:1 Borrowing capacity
$27.0M

 

ASSETS

Total Assets as at December 31st 2022 amounted to $113.71M 

compared to $99.99M in 2021.  This growth in assets of $13.73M 

{14%} was mainly due to the increase in Advances-principal 

(Loan portfolio) which accounted for 82% {$93.18M} of total 

assets.  This category of assets (loans) grew by $6.20M {7%} 

from $86.98M in 2021 to $93.18M in 2022.

Figure 13:
ASSET GROWTH 2018- 2022
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Figure 14:
TOTAL LIABILITIES
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LIABILITIES

Total liabilities increased by $10.82M {15%} from $72.50M 

in 2021 to $83.32M in 2022.  This was mainly due to an 

increase in the long-term borrowings which accounted for 

98% or $81.57M of the total liabilities.  The Bank obtained 

a new line of credit of $15M from the Government of 

Grenada in 2022.

EQUITY

Shareholder Equity
Shareholder Equity increased by $1.23M {5%} moving 

from $26.36M in 2021 to $27.58M in 2022.  With this 

equity base, the Bank is well positioned to create a positive 

impact on the Grenadian economy in 2023.

Debt to Equity
The Debt-to-Equity ratio (total debt to total equity) 

increased to 3.02:1 in 2022 compared to 2.75:1 in 2021.  

This was due to increased borrowing in 2022 of $15M.  

The standard requires a maximum ratio of 4:1.   The GDB 

can therefore borrow up to $27.0M without the need for 

additional equity.

The Gearing ratio (total debt to total assets) as at December 

31,2022 remained at 73% (73% in 2021).
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GRANTS 

	 The GDB served as the administrator/manager of 

four grants during 2022.

	¶ Two of these grants were received in 2020 from 

the Caribbean Community Climate Change 

Centre (5C) and the Deutsche Gesellschaft für 

Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) & Green 

Climate Fund (GCF).

	¶ The other two grants were received in 2022 

from the Eastern Caribbean Enhanced Direct 

Access (EDA) Project and Green Climate Fund 

(GCF) through the United Nations Office for 

Project Services (UNOPS).

  

These grant funds are as follows:

	 5C funds – Energy Efficiency/Renewable Energy loans 

with a focus on buildings to customers under the 

Energy for Sustainable Development in Caribbean 

Buildings Project (ESD).

	 GIZ/GCF funds – Grants to customers in the Tourism 

and Agriculture sectors under the Climate Resilient 

Water Sector in Grenada (GCREWS) project.

	 Integrated Physical Adaptation and Community 

Resilience funds - the primary aim of the project 

is to strengthen the capacity of local institutions to 

directly access climate finance. (EDA)

	 Private Sector Readiness funds – the primary aim of 

the project is to assist (training, computer software, 

models etc.) the private sector in Grenada in getting 

ready for climate change. (UNOPS)
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Section 9 of the Audit Act CAP. 22A of the Laws of Grenada 
permits me as Director of Audit, to delegate my responsibility 
or power under the Act, other than the responsibility to 
make a report to the Minister or an appropriate Minister 
that is to be laid before the House of Representatives, to a 
professional auditor entitled by law to practice accounting 
in Grenada.

The Minister shall, not later than seven days after the House 
of Representatives first meet, after he has received the 
report, lay it before the House of Representatives.  This 
is in compliance with Section 82(4) of the Constitution of 
Grenada.

I delegated my responsibility to Panel Kerr Foster (PKF) 
Accountants & Business Advisers to conduct the audit of 
the financial statements of Grenada Development Bank 
(GDB) in accordance with appropriate auditing standards; 
I have also delegated my powers to access records and 
obtain information under Section 19 of the Audit Act CAP.  
22A of the Laws of Grenada.  I have reviewed the audited 
financial statements of the Grenada Development Bank for 
the year ended 31 December 2022 and I am satisfied with 
the opinion given by PKF.

Auditors Opinion
PKF has audited the financial statements of the Grenada 
Development Bank, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2022 and the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended and Notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In their opinion, the accompanying financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Bank as at 31 December 2022 and its financial performance 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT REPORT TO THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GRENADA DEVELOPMENT BANK

FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Basis for Opinion
PKF conducted their audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  Their responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of their report.  They are independent of the Bank in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
their audit of the financial statements in Grenada, and they 
have fulfilled their other responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements.  They believe that the audit evidence 
they have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for their opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged 
with governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with IFRS for and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Bank or to cease operations, or has no alternative but 
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing 
the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Director of Audit Report
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements
PKF objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and 
to issue an auditors’ report that includes their opinion.  
Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, they exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit.  They also:

	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks and obtain evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for their opinion.  The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations or the override 
of internal control.

	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT REPORT TO THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF GRENADA DEVELOPMENT BANK

FOR YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022
(continued)

	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists relate to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern.  If they conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists; they are required to draw attention 
in their auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify their opinion.  Their conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of their auditor’s report.  However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the financial statements, including the disclosures 
and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation.

They communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that they identify 
during their audit.

Gary Walters
DIRECTOR OF AUDIT (AG.)
AUDIT OFFICE
GRENADA

17 November 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Grenada Development Bank (the “Bank”), which comprise the statement 

of financial position at December 31st, 2022, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

of the Bank as at December 31st, 2022 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).  Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section 

of our report.  We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements in Grenada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion.

Other information included in the Bank’s 2022 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Bank’s 2022 Annual Report, other than the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  Management is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of 

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified 

above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Pannell House  |  P.O. Box 1798  |  Grand Anse  |  St. George 
Grenada  |  West Indies
Tel: (473) 440-2562  |  3014  |  2127  |  0414
Fax: (473) 440-6750  |  Email: pkf@pkfgrenada.com

Partners:  Henry A Joseph FCCA (Managing), Michelle A. Millet B.A., CPA, CGA (Mrs.), Michelle K. Bain ACCA (Miss.)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MINISTER OF 
FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, PUBLIC UTILITIES AND ENERGY

ON
GRENADA DEVELOPMENT BANK
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 

IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 

to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit.  We also:

	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Bank’s internal control.

	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MINISTER OF 
FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, PUBLIC UTILITIES AND ENERGY

ON
GRENADA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(continued)
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	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease 

to continue as a going concern.

	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.

GRENADA

October 20, 2023 							       Accountants & Business Advisers

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MINISTER OF 
FINANCE, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, PUBLIC UTILITIES AND ENERGY

ON
GRENADA DEVELOPMENT BANK

(continued)
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Notes 2022 2021

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment securities - Equity
Investment securities - Debt
Deferred asset

Advances - Principal

4
5
6
6
7

8

4,254,065
81,335
25,001

200,000
186,146

4,746,547
93,178,303

4,290,513
81,335
25,001

350,000
207,714

4,954,563
86,978,281

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 97,924,850 91,932,844

Current Assets
Advances – Interest
Other assets
Investment securities - Deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

8
9
6

10

494,246
1,324,570
5,456,310
8,513,977

15,789,103

435,930
551,796

2,947,089
4,117,073
8,051,888

TOTAL ASSETS $113,713,953 $99,984,732

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Government’s Equity

Capital grants
Capital contribution
Reserve fund
Revaluation reserve

11
12
13
14

1,040,000
16,293,047

2,575,353
1,967,224
5,706,090

27,581,714

1,040,000
16,293,047

2,237,655
1,967,224
4,813,594

26,351,520

Grants
Non-Current Liabilities

Long-term borrowings
Deferred income

17

15
19

2,809,361

76,748,459
322,095

77,070,554

1,128,293 

66,566,312
283,625

66,849,937

Current Liabilities
Other liabilities
Short-term borrowings
Amount due to projects

18
15
20

1,301,654
4,817,140

133,530
6,252,324

935,879
4,540,547

178,556
5,654,982

TOTAL LIABILITIES 83,322,878 72,504,919

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES $113,713,953 $99,984,732

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
Approved by the board of Directors on September 28, 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

                                  Director:                                                                          Director:

Statement of Financial Position
At 31st December, 2022
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INTEREST INCOME

Interest on loans

Interest on investments

Interest expense

Net interest income

Other income

23

24

25

5,835,859

113,915

5,949,774

(2,222,232)

3,727,542

1,078,341

4,805,883

5,685,868

127,330

5,813,198

(2,069,112)

3,744,086

890,931

4,635,017

EXPENDITURE

Directors’ fees and expenses

General expenses

Depreciation

Commitment fees

Expected credit losses

29

(79,527)

(3,030,381)

(89,542)

-

(255,640)

(3,455,090)

(51,600)

(2,746,206)

(78,585)

(3,959)

(303,220)

(3,183,570)

Net surplus for the year $1,350,793 $1,451,447

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Income
For the year ended 31st December, 2022
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Reserve
Fund

Capital
Grant

Revaluation 
Reserve

Capital
Contribution

Retained
Earnings

Total
Equity

Balance at 1st January, 2021

Net surplus for the year

Allocation to reserve

Dividends

Balance at 31st December, 2021

Net surplus for the year

Allocation to reserve

Dividends

1,874,793

-

362,862

    -

2,237,655

-

337,698

    -

1,040,000

-

-

    -

1,040,000

-

-

    -

1,967,224

-

-

    -

1,967,224

-

-

    -

16,293,047

-

-

    -

16,293,047

-

-

    -

3,772,462

1,451,447

(362,862)

(47,453)

4,813,594

1,350,793

(337,698)

(120,599)

24,947,526

1,451,447

-

(47,453)

26,351,520

1,350,793

-

(120,599)

Balance at 31st December, 2022 $2,575,353 $1,040,000 $1,967,224 $16,293,047 $5,706,090 $27,581,714

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Changes in Government’s Equity
For the year ended 31st December, 2022



Annual Report 2022

35

Notes 2022 2021

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net surplus for the year

Adjustment for:

Depreciation

Change in non-cash items

Increase in advances

Decrease in deferred asset

Increase in other assets

Increase in deferred income

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to projects

1,350,793

89,542

1,440,335

(6,258,338)

21,568

(772,774)

38,470

365,775

(45,026) 

1,451,447

78,585

1,530,032

(8,555,471)

8,056

(16,627)

283,625

(727,329)

121,336

Net cash used in operating activities (5,209,990) (7,356,378)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/decrease in investment securities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(2,359,221)

(53,094) 

252,932

(50,297)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,412,315) 202,635

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Grants received

Dividends paid

Net movement of borrowings

1,681,068

(120,599)

10,458,740

-

(47,453)

5,756,726

Net cash provided by financing activities 12,019,209 5,709,273

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents – at beginning of the year

4,396,904

4,117,073

(1,444,470)

5,561,543

- at end of the year 10 $8,513,977 $4,117,073

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31st December, 2022
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1.	 CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Bank was established by the Grenada Agricultural and Industrial Development Act, 1976 for the purpose 

of granting loans and providing other forms of financial assistance for industrial and tourism development, 

housing, higher education, agricultural development and other development projects.

The corporate name Grenada Agricultural and Industrial Development Corporation was changed to the Grenada 

Development Bank by proclamation of People’s Law No. 33 of 1980 which became effective on 18th July, 1980.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.  

These policies have been consistently applied at all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a)	 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) and are expressed in Eastern Caribbean Currency Dollars.  The financial statements have 

been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of land and building.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS’s requires the use of certain critical 

accounting estimates.  It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying 

the bank’s accounting policies.  The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas 

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(i)	 New Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with 

those followed in the preparation of the Company’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31st 

December, 2021 except for the adoption of new standards and interpretations below.

Amendments to IAS 16 – Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Effective 

1 January, 2022)

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and 

equipment (PP&E), any proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.  

Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs of producing those 

items, in profit or loss.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2022

(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 – Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Effective 1 January, 2022)

In May 2020, the IASB issued Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Reference to the Conceptual 

Framework.  The amendments are intended to replace a reference to a previous version of the IASB’s 

Conceptual Framework (the 1989 Framework) with a reference to the current version issued in March 

2018 (the Conceptual Framework) without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments add an exception to the recognition principle of IFRS 3 to avoid the issue of potential 

‘day 2’ gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of 

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately.  

The exception requires entities to apply the criteria in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the 

Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date.  At 

the same time, the amendments add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not 

qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts, Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Effective 1 January, 2022)

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous 

or loss-making.  The amendments apply a ‘directly related cost approach’.  The costs that relate directly 

to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour 

and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities (e.g., depreciation of 

equipment used to fulfil the contract as well as costs of contract management and supervision).  General 

and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly 

chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

These amendments had no impact at the Bank

(ii)	 Standards in issue but not yet effective

Amendments to IAS 1 – Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-Current (Effective

1 January, 2023)

In January 2020, the Board issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 Presentation of 

Financial Statements to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.  

The amendments clarify:

	t What is meant by a right to defer settlement

	t That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(i)	 New Accounting Standards, Amendments and Interpretations (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2022

(Continued)

	t That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

	t That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument, would the 

terms of a liability not impact its classification

The amendments had no impact on the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 – Disclosure of Accounting

Policies (Effective 1 January, 2023)

The amendments change the requirements in IAS 1 with regard to disclosure of accounting policies.  The 

amendments replace all instances of the term ‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting 

policy information’.  Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other 

information included in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence 

decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those 

financial statements.

The Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of 

the ‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

	~ Amendments to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Effective 1st January, 2023)

The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of 

accounting estimates.  Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in 

financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was deleted.  However, the Board retained 

the concept of changes in accounting estimates in the Standard with the following clarifications:

	t A change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is 

not the correction of an error.

	t The effects of a change in an input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting 

estimate are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of 

prior period errors.

	~ Amendments to IAS 12- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 

Transaction (Effective 1st January, 2023)

The amendments introduce a further exception from the initial recognition exemption.  Under the 

amendments, an entity does not apply the initial recognition exemption for transactions that give 

rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(ii)	 Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st December, 2022

(Continued)

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and deductible temporary differences may arise 

on initial recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that is not a business combination 

and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Following the amendments to IAS 12, an entity is required to recognise the related deferred tax 

asset and liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset being subject to the recoverability 

criteria in IAS 12.

The amendments apply to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative 

period presented.  In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period an entity recognises:

	 A deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which 

the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible 

and taxable temporary differences associated with:

	t Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

	t Decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised 

as part of the cost of the related asset.

	 The cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance 

of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at that date.

	~ IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts (Effective 1 January, 2023)

In May 2017, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 

(IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition 

and measurement, presentation and disclosure.  Once effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance 

Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005.  IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., 

life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, 

as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation features.

A few scope exceptions will apply.  The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide an accounting 

model for insurance contracts that is more useful and consistent for insurers.  In contrast to the 

requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, 

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting 

aspects.  The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

	t A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

	t A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(ii)	 Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)
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(Continued)

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative 

figures required.  Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 

15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17.

The amendments to IFRS 4 - Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9 changes 

the fixed expiry date for the temporary exemption in IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts from applying 

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, so that entities would be required to apply IFRS 9 for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

(iii)	 Improvements to International Reporting Standards

The annual improvements process for the International Accounting Standards Board deals with non-

urgent but necessary clarifications and amendments to IFRS.

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 cycle

The following amendments are applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2022

IFRSs – Subject of Amendment
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards – Subsidiary as a first-

time adopter.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial liabilities
IFRS 16 Leases – Lease incentives
IAS 41 Agriculture – Taxation in fair value measurements

The amendments had no effect on the Bank

(c)	 Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted at the rates ruling on the dates of the transactions.  

Liabilities outstanding at the statement of financial position date are translated to Eastern Caribbean 

Currency Dollars at the rate of exchange ruling at that date.  Differences on exchange on current 

liabilities are reflected in the comprehensive income statement in arriving at net income for the year, 

while differences on long term loans are deferred until realised.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(b)	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

(ii)	 Standards in issue but not yet effective (continued)
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(Continued)

(d)	 Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and building are stated at 2020 valuation less subsequent depreciation on building.  However, 

additions to building thereafter are stated at cost.  Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis at 

varying rates sufficient to write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the period of their estimated 

useful lives.  No depreciation is charged on land.  The rates used are as follows:

Per annum
Building
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computers

2.5%
10% to 20%
25%
331/3%

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 

Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  All other repairs and maintenance are charged 

to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to revaluation 

surplus in equity.  Decreases that offset previous increases of the same assets are charged against the 

surplus directly in equity; all other decreases are charged to the statement of income.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at statement of 

financial position date.

The cost of property, plant and equipment replaced, retired or otherwise disposed of and the

accumulated depreciation thereon are eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or

loss reflected in current operations.

(e)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and at bank.

(f)	 Interest

Accrued interest on loans is recorded in the statement of financial position in the related asset category.  

No credit is taken for interest due but uncollected after three months.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)
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(Continued)

(g)	 Financial instruments

(i)	 Classification and measurement

Initial recognition

Financial instruments are contracts that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 

or equity instrument of another entity.

The Bank recognises deposits with financial institutions and loans to borrowers on the date on which 

they are originated.  All other financial instruments (including regular-way purchases and sale of financial 

assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the Bank becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial measurement

The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms and 

the business model for managing the instruments.  Financial instruments are initially measured at their 

fair value, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through 

profit or loss (FVPL) whereby transaction costs are added to, or subtracted from, this amount.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Bank classifies all of its assets at either:

	 Amortised cost or

	 FVPL

The Bank’s financial liabilities are at amortised cost.

Amortised cost

The Bank measures its cash and cash equivalents, debt and deposit securities, advances and other 

assets at amortised cost.  Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following 

conditions are met:

	 The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order 

to collect contractual cash flows and

	 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are designated by management upon initial recognition 

or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under IFRS 9.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)
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(Continued)

Management only designates an instrument at FVPL upon initial recognition when one of the following 

criteria are met.  Such designation is determined on an instrument-by - instrument basis:

	 The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise 

arise from measuring the assets or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis, or

	 The assets were part of a group of financial assets under IAS 39, which were managed and their 

performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management 

or investment strategy.

Financial assets at FVPL are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value.

Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss.  Interest earned or incurred on instruments 

designated at FVPL is accrued in interest income, using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), taking into 

account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument.

Dividend income from equity instruments measured at FVPL is recorded in profit or loss as other income 

when the right to the payment has been established.

(ii)	 Impairment

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, the Bank uses an expected credit loss (ECL) model which 

requires the Bank to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses 

at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial assets.

The Bank records an allowance for expected credit losses for advances and investment securities.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract 

and all the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 

effective interest rate.  The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held 

or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages.  For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant 

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default 

events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).  For those credit exposures for 

which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is 

required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing 

of the default (a lifetime ECL).

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(g)	 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)	 Classification and measurement (continued)
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The Bank considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30 days past due.  However, 

in certain cases, the Bank may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external 

information indicates that the Bank is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full 

before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Bank.

Based on the above process, the Bank classifies its advances and investments ECLs into Stage 1, Stage 

2 and Stage 3.

Stage 1

Advances and investments are first recognised, the Bank recognises an allowance based on 12 month 

ECLs.  Stage 1 financial assets also include facilities where the credit risk have improved and the financial 

assets have been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2

When advances and investments have shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the 

Bank records an allowance for the Lifetime ECLs.  Stage 2 also include facilities, where the credit risk 

has improved and financial assets have been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

Advances and investments considered credit-impaired.  Here the Bank records an allowance for the 

Lifetime ECLs.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given period of time.  
A default may only happen at a certain time over the asserted period, if the facility has not been 
previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio

EAD - he Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account 
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date including repayments of principal and 
interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise.

LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case were a default occurs at a given 
time.  It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and the cash flows expected 
to be received.  It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD

The maximum period for which the credit losses are determined is the contractual life of a financial 

instrument.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(g)	 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)	 Impairment (continued)
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Calculation of ECLs

Stage 1

The 12m ECL is calculated as the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default 

events on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.  The 

bank calculates the 12m ECL allowance based on the expectation of a default occurring in the 12 months 

following the reporting date.  These expected 12-month default probabilities are applied to a forecast 

EAD and multiplied by the expected LGD.

Stage 2

When financial assets have shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Bank records 

an allowance for the LTECLs.  The mechanics are similar to those explained above, but PDs and LGDs 

are estimated over the lifetime of the loan.

Stage 3

For financial assets considered credit-impaired, the Bank recognises the lifetime expected credit losses 

for these financial assets.  The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

Impairment of other financial assets

Cash at bank and short-term debt securities

The Bank’s cash at bank and deposit investment securities are deposits placed with reputable institutions.  

The Bank therefore considers the risk of default to be low.  The ECL on these instruments were therefore 

determined to be zero.

(iii)	 Write offs

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off to the extent that there is no realistic 

prospect of recovery.  This is generally when the Bank determines that the borrower or debtor does 

not have assets or resources of income that would generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount 

subject to the write-off.

(iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 

of the asset to another entity.  If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained 

interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.  If the Bank retains 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues 

to recognise the financial asset.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(g)	 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)	 Impairment (continued)
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On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s 

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

(v)	 Financial liabilities

When financial liabilities are recognised they are measured at fair value of the consideration given 

plus transactions costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the liability.  Financial liabilities are 

re-measured at amortised.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished, that is when the obligation specified in 

the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.  The difference between the carrying amount of a financial 

liability extinguished and the consideration price is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(vi)	 Fair value

Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities represents the amounts at which the instrument could 

be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.  

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other assets, investments, advances, borrowings, other 

liabilities and amounts due to projects approximate their carrying amounts.

(h)	 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised at fair value net of transaction cost incurred.  Borrowings are subsequently 

stated at amortized cost: any difference between the proceeds, net of transaction cost, and the redemption 

value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of borrowings.  Borrowings 

are classified as current liabilities unless the Bank has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the 

liability for at least twelve (12) months after the statement of financial position date.

(i)	 Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, 

but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services 

or for administrative purposes.

Investment property of the Bank comprises of land situated in Victoria and Birchgrove held for long-

term rental yields and which is not occupied by the Bank.  Investment property is treated as a long-term 

investment and is carried at cost.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)

(g)	 Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets (continued)
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(j)	 Pension plan

The Bank operates a defined contribution pension plan which is administered by Demerara Mutual Life 

Assurance Society Limited.  The Bank pays fixed monthly contributions and has no legal obligation to 

pay further amounts.  Both the Bank and employees contribute 5% of covered payroll to the Plan.  The 

Bank’s contributions are recorded as an expense in the statement of income.

3.	 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
The development of estimates and the exercise of judgment in applying accounting policies may have a 

material impact on the Bank’s reported assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.  The items which may have 

the most effect on these financial statements, are set out below.

(i)	 Valuation of property

The Bank utilises professional valuators to determine the fair value of its properties.  Valuations are 

determined through the application of a variety of different valuation methods which are all sensitive 

to the underlying assumptions chosen.

(ii)	 Property, plant and equipment

Management exercises judgment in determining whether future economic benefits can be derived from 

expenditures to be capitalized and in estimating the useful lives and residual values of these assets.

(iii)	 Impairment of loans receivable

Provision is made for doubtful debts based on specific identification of doubtful balances.  As debts 

become uncollectible they are written off against the provision.

(iv)	 Calculation of loss allowance

When measuring ECL, the Bank uses reasonable and supportive forward-looking information, which is 

based on assumptions for the future movement of different economic drivers and how these drivers 

will affect each other.

Loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising on default.  It is based on the difference between 

the contract cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash 

flows collateral and integral credit enhancements.

Probability of default constitutes a key input in measuring ECL.  Probability of default is an estimate of 

the likelihood of default over a given time horizon, the calculation of which includes data, assumptions 

and expectations of future conditions.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  (continued)
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5.	 INVESTMENT PROPERTY
2022 2021

Balance at 31st December, 2022 – At cost $81,335 $81,335

6.	 INVESTMENT SECURITIES
2022 2021

Equity securities at fair value through profit and loss

Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange (Unquoted)
2,500 class C shares at $10.00 each - cost

Financial Data Systems Limited (Unquoted)
60,000 shares of common stock at $1.00 each - cost

Less: Diminution in value of shares

25,000

60,000

59,999

  1

25,000

60,000

59,999

  1

Total $25,001 $25,001

The fair value of the Eastern Caribbean Securities Exchange shares were estimated at cost since insufficient 
information was available to measure at fair value.

2022 2021

Short-term:
Deposit securities at amortised cost

ARIZA Credit Union Limited

- Fixed deposit

- Fixed deposit

Grenada Union of Teachers - Fixed deposit

ACB Bank Grenada Limited - Term deposit

411,042

5,000,000

18,159

27,109

402,205

2,500,000

17,803

27,081

Total $5,456,310 $2,947,089

Long-term:
Deposit securities at amortised cost

Government of Grenada - 3% 2023 bond 200,000 350,000

Total $5,656,310 $3,297,089

There is a lien on the ACB Bank Grenada Limited term deposit which is being held as security for a credit 

card facility.
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7.	 DEFERRED ASSET
This relates to the deferred exchange differences on the Caribbean Development Bank and CARICOM 

Development Fund borrowings disclosed in Note 15.  The differences are being amortised over the term of 

the loans.

8.	 ADVANCES - PRINCIPAL
2022 2021

Advances – principal

Less: Provision for expected credit losses

94,619,374

1,441,071

$93,178,303

88,503,206

1,524,925

$86,978,281

Accrued interest (3 months) $494,246 $435,930

Advances – principal by sector

2022 2021

Agriculture

Education

Fishing

Housing

Tourism

Personal

Other Business

3,094,173

10,843,179

864,140

54,402,949

7,648,734

198,451

17,567,748

3.27%

11.46%

0.91%

57.50%

8.08%

0.21%

18.57%

2,519,104

10,455,751

1,132,092

48,256,690

7,010,241

190,159

18,939,169

2.85%

11.81%

1.28%

54.53%

7.92%

0.21%

21.40%

$94,619,374 $88,503,206

Movements in provision for loan losses are as follows:

2022 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year

Bad debts recovered

Bad debts written off

Increase in expected credit losses

1,524,925

(74,808)

(314,418)

305,372

1,439,073

(215,838)

-

301,690

Balance at end of the year $1,441,071 $1,524,925
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Expected credit loss by sector

2022 2021

Agriculture

Education

Fishing

Housing

Tourism

Personal

Other Business

52,445

399,499

6,400

424,157

82,798

992

474,780

49,926

477,845

255,639

374,886

70,103

1,481

295,04

$1,441,071 $1,524,925

9.	 OTHER ASSETS
2022 2021

Matured investment – CLICO investment

Interest receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepayments

Less: Provision for expected credit losses

810,000

159,111

699,531

740,975

2,409,617

1,085,047

810,000

138,057

238,051

450,735

1,636,843

1,085,047

$1,324,570 $551,796

10.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2022 2021

Cash on hand

Cash at bank

1,200

8,512,777

1,200

4,115,873

$8,513,977 $4,117,073

8.	 ADVANCES - PRINCIPAL  (continued)
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11.	 GOVERNMENT CAPITAL GRANTS
(a)	 $40,000

This amount represents Government’s counterpart contribution under the terms of the Small Industry 

Credit Loan Agreement dated 30th September, 1974 with the Caribbean Development Bank.

(b)	 $1,000,000

This amount represents Government’s counterpart contribution under the terms of the “Second 

Consolidated Line of Credit - AIC/MF/SLS Loan Agreement dated 2nd September, 1988 with the Caribbean 

Development Bank.

12.	 GOVERNMENT CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION
2022 2021

Balance at 31st December, 2022 $16,293,047 $16,293,047

13.	 RESERVE FUND
Pursuant to the Grenada Development Bank Act, the Bank is required to transfer a minimum of 25% of its 

net surplus to a reserve fund to meet contingencies and for such other purposes as the Bank deems fit.

14.	 REVALUATION RESERVE
2022 2021

Balance at 31st December, 2022 $1,967,224 $1,967,224

The Bank’s property was last re-valued by Corporate Real Estate Service in January 2021 using the open market 

value method.  The net gains of the revaluation over the carrying value totals $1,967,224.
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15.	 BORROWINGS
2022 2021

Long-term:
(a) Caribbean Development Bank (Note 16)

(b) National Insurance Board

(c) CARICOM Development Fund

(d) Eastern Caribbean Home Mortgage Bank

(e) PetroCaribe

(f) Government of Grenada

Total borrowings

Less: Current portion

Long term portion

Short-term:
Current portion of borrowings

22,625,626

170,249

3,204,308

7,327,380

33,238,036

15,000,000

81,565,599

4,817,140

76,748,459

4,817,140

24,564,477

243,043

4,060,140

7,823,119

34,416,080

   -

71,106,859

4,540,547

66,566,312

4,540,547

Total borrowings $81,565,599 $71,106,859

(a)	 The loan is secured by a guarantee from the Government of Grenada.  See Note 16 for details.

(b)	 National Insurance Board

Renovation Loan

The sum of $1,000,000 was authorised and withdrawn.  It is repayable over twenty-five (25) years by 

equal month instalments of $7,067.79 inclusive of interest which began December 31st, 1999.  Interest 

was charged at the rate of seven (7%) percent per annum until August 31st, 2017.  Effective September 

1st, 2017, interest is charged at the rate of 5.75%.

The loan is secured by a mortgage on the Bank’s property at Melville Street.

(c)	 CARICOM Development Fund

The loan amount is US$3,000,000 and it bears interest at the rate of three (3%) percent per annum.   

Payments commenced in January and it is repayable by forty (40) equal quarterly instalments payments 

of US$89,079 inclusive of interest.
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(d)	 There are two Eastern Caribbean Home Mortgage Bank’s loans which are as follows:

Loan A

The sum of $6,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 3.5% per 

annum.  Principal payments commenced November 2019 over sixty-four (64) equal quarterly instalments.

Loan B

The sum of $3,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 3.5% per 

annum.  Principal payments commenced September 2017 over fourteen (14) years.

(e)	 There are three Petrocaribe loans which are as follows

Loan 1

The sum of $10,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 3% per 

annum.  The loan is repayable over sixteen (16) years in quarterly instalments inclusive of interest of 

EC$219,347.84 commencing January 2021.

Loan 2

The sum of $15,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 2.5% per 

annum.  The loan is repayable over sixteen (16) years in quarterly instalments inclusive of interest of 

EC$285,089 commencing April 2022.

Loan 3

The sum of $10,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 2% per 

annum.  The loan is repayable over sixteen (16) years in quarterly instalments of EC$182,969 inclusive 

of interest commencing February 2024.

(f)	 Government of Grenada loan

The sum of $15,000,000 was made available and withdrawn.  Interest is payable at the rate of 1% per 

annum.  Interest only is payable for three (3) years thereafter the loan is repayable over fifteen (15) years.

16.	 CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK - LOAN
Foreign

Currency
2022
EC $

2021
EC $

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

21/SFR-OR-GRN 1

21/SFR-OR-GRN 2

21/SFR-OR-GRN 3

Fourth consolidated line of credit

Fourth consolidated line of credit

Fourth consolidated line of credit

US$

US$

US$

7,840,087

228,070

285,714

21,234,092

617,705

773,829

22,867,485

665,221

1,031,771

$22,625,626 $24,564,477

15.	 BORROWINGS  (continued)
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The loan is in the name of the Government of Grenada with the Bank as the executing Agency.

Facility (i) is for US$9,000,000 and is to be repaid in sixty (60) equal quarterly instalments at 2.97% - 4.8% 

interest per annum.  Facility (ii) is for US$500,000 and is to be repaid in sixty (60) equal quarterly instalments 

at the rate of 2.5% per annum.  Facility (iii) is for US$500,000 and is to be repaid in thirty-two (32) equal 

quarterly instalments at the rate of 2.5% per annum.

Repayment of the facility (i) commenced in January 2021, facility (ii) commenced in October 2021 and facility 

(iii) in October 2020.

17.	 GRANTS
2022 2021

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Grant #1

Grant #2

Grant #3

Grant #4

687,829

263,950

1,039,052

818,530

759,966

368,327

-

    -

$2,809,361 $1,128,293

(i)	 Energy for Sustainable Development in the Caribbean Buildings Project grant - The grant amount is 

US$400,000 and is provided by the Caribbean Community Climate Change Centre.  The Bank is the 

administrator/manager of the revolving fund which will provide loans to customers with a focus on 

energy efficiency building.  The Bank will contribute 75% of the loan amounts with the remaining 

25% provided by the fund.

(ii)	 Improving the Climate Resilience of Grenada’s Water Supply System grant - The grant amount 

is EUR2,592,864.00 and is provided by Deutsche Gesellschaft Ftir International Zusammenarbeit 

(GIZ) and the Green Climate Fund (GCF).  The grant will be managed by the Bank and the primary 

aim of the project is to establish and implement a fund to increase resilience in the Tourism and 

Agriculture sectors.  As at 31st December, 2021 EC$438,503 was drawn down on the grant amount 

of EUR2,592,864.00.

(iii)	 Integrated physical adaptation and community resilience grant - The grant amount is EC$4,946,288.00 

and is provided by Eastern Caribbean Enhanced Direct Access (EDA) Project.  The grant will be managed 

by the Bank and the primary aim of the project is to strengthen the capacity of local institutions to 

directly access climate finance.  As at 31st December, 2022, EC$1,596,790.80 was drawn down on 

the grant amount.

16.	 CARIBBEAN DEVELOPMENT BANK - LOAN  (continued)
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(iv)	 Private Sector Readiness Grant – the grant amount is US$619,180 and is provided by the Green Climate 

Fund (GCF) through the United Nations Office for Project Services.  The grant will be managed by the 

Bank and the primary aim of the project is to assist the private sector in Grenada in getting ready for 

climate change.  As at 31st December, 2022, US$304,560.00 was drawn down on the grant amount.

18.	 OTHER LIABILITIES
2022 2021

Accrued interest

Accounts payable

260,879

1,040,775

190,421

745,458

$1,301,654 $935,879

19.	 DEFERED INCOME
2022 2021

Balance at 31st December, 2022 $322,095 $283,625

This relates to grant funding under the Energy for Sustainable Development in the Caribbean Building Project 

grant which has been loaned to customers.  The amount is being credited to income over the term of the loans.

20.	 AMOUNT DUE TO PROJECTS
2022 2021

YutBiz Programme (formerly Youth Enterprise Initiative) $133,530 $178,556

These funds are disbursed for on-lending to the respective micro-businesses.

21.	 COMMITMENTS
At the statement of financial position date un-disbursed loans committed amounted to $5,294,374 (2021: 

$2,263,665).

17.	 GRANTS  (continued)
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22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Bank’s activities expose it to the following risks from the use of financial instruments:

	 Credit risk

	 Liquidity risk

	 Currency risk

	 Interest rate risk

	 Operational risk

Risk is inherent to the Bank’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 

measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls.  This process of risk management 

is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for risk 

exposures relating to their responsibilities.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk 

strategies, principles, policies and procedures.  Day to day adherence to risk principles is carried out by the 

management of the Bank in compliance with the policies approved by the Board of Directors.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Bank, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.  Risk management policies 

and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered.  

The Bank through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 

constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board has established two (2) committees, the Audit Committee and the Internal Loan Committee, which 

are responsible for developing and monitoring the Bank’s risk management policies in their specified areas.  

These committees report to the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has oversight for the integrity of the financial statements and reviews the adequacy 

and effectiveness of internal controls and risk management procedures.

Internal Loan Committee

This committee reviews applications for business loans up to $100,000, student loans up to $200,000 and 

mortgage loans up to $300,000.  The Board of Directors considers for approval, loans over the limits of the 

Internal Loan Committee.  All loans under the limits of the committee are considered for approval by the 

Manager.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a borrower or counter party to a financial instrument 

fails to meet its contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms.  The objective of the Bank’s credit 

risk management function is to maintain credit risk exposure within acceptable parameters as the effective 

management of credit risk is a key comprehensive approach to risk management and is considered essential 

to the long-term success of the Bank.  The Bank’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from the Bank’s 

loans receivable which are given for national developmental purposes in all areas of industrial development.  

The priority areas for industrial development are identified by the Government of Grenada each year.

Significant changes in the economy or in the state of a particular industry segment that represents a 

concentration in the Bank’s portfolio could result in losses that are different from those provided at the 

statement of financial position date.

Concentration of credit risk exists if a number of customers are engaged in similar activities or are located in 

the same industry sector or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual 

obligations would be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.  Concentration 

of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the bank’s performance to developments affecting a particular 

industry or geographical location.

Management of credit risk

Advances

The management and oversight of credit risk of loans is executed by the management of the Bank, the 

Internal Loan Committee and the Board of Directors.  There is a documented credit policy in place, which 

guides the bank’s credit processes.

The Bank structures the level of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted 

in relation to one borrower, or group of borrowers and to industry segments.  Such risk is monitored on a 

revolving basis and is subject to an annual or more frequent review.  The level of risk is set against economic 

factors and government priority areas.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of the borrower to meet interest and 

capital repayment obligations, obtaining collateral and corporate and personal guarantees, and by changing 

lending limits and adjusting interest rates within approved ranges where appropriate.

Other financial assets

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the bank, which comprise accounts 

receivable and prepayments, cash and cash equivalents and investments, the Bank’s exposure to credit risk 

arises from default of the counterparty with regards to cash and cash equivalents and investments.  The 

Bank seeks to hold its funds with financial institutions which management regards as sound and the market 

for investments are monitored regularly to ensure that returns are realized.

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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Exposure to credit risk

The following table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of 

financial position, without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.

Maximum exposure

2022 2021

Investment securities - Debt

Investment securities - Equity

Investment securities - Deposits

Advances – Principal

Advances - Interest

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

200,000

25,001

5,456,310

93,178,303

494,246

1,324,570

8,513,977

350,000

25,001

2,947,089

86,978,281

435,930

551,796

4,117,073

$109,192,407 $95,405,170

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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Analysis of gross carrying amount of advances and corresponding ECLs are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at 31st December, 2022

Gross advances

ECL

82,865,759

(371,748)

9,638,643

(106,058)

2,114,972

(963,265)

94,619,374

(1,441,071)

Net balance $82,494,011 $9,532,585 $1,151,707 $93,178,303

ECL as a percentage of gross advances .45% 1.10% 45.55% 1.52%

Balance at 31st December, 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross advances

ECL

80,343,974

(391,295)

6,289,925

(62,899)

1,869,307

(1,070,731)

88,503,206

(1,524,925)

Net balance $79,952,679 $6,227,026 $798,576 $86,978,281

ECL as a percentage of gross advances .49% 1.00% 57.28% 1.72%

Stages as a percentage of total gross advances: 2022 2021

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

88.5%

10.3%

1.2%

100.00%

91.9%

7.2%

0.9%

100.00%

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)
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Analysis of gross carrying amount of investments securities subject to impairment (debt and deposits) and 

corresponding ECLs are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at 31st December, 2022

Gross investments

ECL

5,656,310

    -

-

    -

-

    -

5,656,310

    -

Net balance $ 5,656,310 $    - $    - $ 5,656,310

ECL as a percentage of gross investments 0% 0% 0% 0%

Balance at 31st December, 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross investments

ECL

2,947,089

    -

400,000

(50,000)

-

    -

3,347,089

(50,000)

Net balance $2,947,289 $350,000 $  - $3,297,089

ECL as a percentage of gross investments 0% 12.5% 0% 1.67%

Stages as a percentage of total gross investments: 2022 2021

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

100%

0.0%

0.0%

100%

89.4%

10.6%

0.0%

100%

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)
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Analysis of gross carrying amount of Other Assets and corresponding ECLs are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Balance at 31st December, 2022

Gross other assets

ECL

1,324,570

    -

-

    -

1,085,047

(1,085,047)

2,409,619

(1,085,047)

Net balance $ 1,324,570 $ - $ - $1,324,570

ECL as a percentage of gross balance 0% 0% 100% 45%

Balance at 31st December, 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Gross other assets

ECL

551,796

    -

-

    -

1,085,047

(1,085,047)

1,636,843

(1,085,047)

Net balance $ 551,796 $  - $  - $ 551,796

ECL as a percentage of gross balance 0% 0% 100% 66%

Stages as a percentage of total gross other assets: 2022 2021

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

100.0%

0.0%

0.0%

100.0%

100.0%

0.0%

100.0%

100.0%

Analysis of advances before provision for expected credit losses:

Current
$

1-3 months
$

3-6 months
$

6-12 months
$

Over 12 
months

$
Total

$

2022

2021

82,895,853

80,343,974

9,910,172

6,289,925

166,943

157,169

258,637

428,136

1,387,769

1,284,002

94,619,374

88,503,206

Collateral

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.  

The Bank has guidelines that set out the acceptability of different types of collateral and valuation parameters.  

The types of collateral held by the Bank are mortgage over properties, bill of sales over motor vehicles and 

other assets, liens over cash, bonds and shares, covenants over assets, and personal guarantees.

Estimates of fair values are based on value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing and are generally 

not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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Management monitors the market value of collateral, request additional collateral in accordance with the 

underlying agreement, and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy 

of the allowance for impairment losses.

It is the Bank’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties of which the proceeds are used to repay outstanding 

balances on loans.

Past due and not impaired

These are loans where the contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the Bank believes that 

impairment is not appropriate based on the quality and value of security available or the stage of collection 

of amounts owed to the Bank.

Write off policy

The Bank writes off a loan when it determines that the loan is uncollectible after considering information 

such as the occurrence of significant changes in the borrower’s statement of financial position such that the 

borrower can no longer pay the obligation, and that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to recover 

the entire exposure.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will have difficulty in meeting its obligations from its financial liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 

unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Bank’s reputation.

The Bank monitors its risks of a shortage of funds by considering the maturity of both its investments and the 

projected cash flow from operations to ensure that it is able to honour all its commitments when they fall due.

The aggregate value of the Bank’s financial liabilities into relevant groups based on the remaining period at 

the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity dates.

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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On Demand Up to 1 year 1 to 5 years Over 5 
years

Total

Long-term borrowings

Other liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Amount due to projects

-

1,301,654

-

133,530

-

-

4,817,140

   -

27,474,732

-

-

  -

49,273,727

-

-

  -

76,748,459

1,301,654

4,817,140

133,530

Balance at 31st December, 2022 $1,435,184 $4,817,140 $27,474,732 $49,273,727 $83,000,783

Long-term borrowings

Other liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Amount due to projects

-

935,879

-

178,556

-

-

4,540,547

   -

24,544,203

-

-

   -

42,022,109

-

-

   -

66,566,312

935,879

4,540,547

178,556

Balance at 31st December, 2021 $1,114,435 $4,540,547 $24,544,203 $42,022,109 $72,221,294

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to 

changes in market interest rates.

The Bank is exposed to interest rate risk through the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of interest 

rates on interest bearing financial assets and liabilities, including loans.

The Bank’s exposure is also managed through the matching of funding products with financial services and 

monitoring market conditions and yields.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 

exchange rates.  The Company operates primarily in The Eastern Caribbean and is therefore not subject to 

significant foreign currency risk.  However, some of the Bank’s transactions are in United States but there is 

no significant risk exposure.

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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The aggregate value of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities by currency is as follows:
EC$ USD$ Total

Balance at 31st December, 2022

Assets
Investment securities – Debt

Investment securities- Equity

Investment securities - Deposits

Advances - Principal

Advances - interest

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

200,000

25,001

5,456,310

93,178,303

494,246

1,324,570

7,755,397

108,433,827

-

-

-

-

-

-

758,580

758,580

200,000

25,001

5,456,310

93,178,303

494,246

1,324,570

8,513,977

109,192,407

Liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Other liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Amount due to projects

53,739,190

1,040,802

1,996,475

133,530

56,909,997

23,009,269

260,852

2,820,665

  -

26,090,786

76,748,459

1,301,654

4,817,140

133,530

83,000,783

Net currency exposure $51,523,830 $(25,332,206) $26,191,624

Currency risk
EC$ USD$ Total

Balance at 31st December, 2021

Assets
Investment securities – Debt

Investment securities- Equity

Investment securities - Deposits

Advances - Principal

Advances - interest

Other assets

Cash and cash equivalents

350,000

25,001

2,947,089

86,978,281

435,930

551,796

1,879,530

93,167,627

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,237,543

2,237,543

350,000

25,001

2,947,089

86,978,281

435,930

551,796

4,117,073

95,405,170

Liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Other liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Amount due to projects

40,734,782

745,458

1,747,461

178,556

43,406,257

25,831,530

190,421

2,793,086

    -

28,815,037

66,566,312

935,879

4,540,547

178,556

72,221,294

Net currency exposure $49,761,370 $(26,577,494) $23,183,876

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the 

Bank’s processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, 

market and liquidity risks such as those rising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted 

standards of good corporate behaviour.  Operational risks arise from all the Bank’s operations.  The Bank’s 

objective to manage operational risk is assigned to senior management so as to balance the avoidance of 

financial losses and damage to the Bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and for development and 

implementation of controls to address operational risk.  This responsibility is supported by the development 

of overall Bank standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

	 Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions.

	 Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

	 Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

	 Documentation of controls and procedures.

	 Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, as the adequacy of controls and 

procedures to address the risks identified.

	 Training and professional development

	 Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

23.	 INTEREST INCOME
2022 2021

CARICOM Development Fund loan

Caribbean Development Bank loans

Local loans

Business reactivation loans

National Insurance Scheme loans

Petro Caribe

Eastern Caribbean Home Mortgage Bank

Government of Grenada

549,129

1,036,555

2,183,727

67,667

3,971

1,477,328

467,955

49,527

522,427

1,371,008

1,956,615

69,752

5,013

1,253,426

507,627

    -

$5,835,859 $5,685,868

22.	 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT  (continued)
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24.	 INTEREST EXPENSE
2022 2021

CARICOM Development Fund

Caribbean Development Bank

National Insurance Scheme

Petro Caribe

Eastern Caribbean Home Mortgage Bank

Government of Grenada

112,237

895,387

12,046

848,364

264,198

90,000

137,542

773,055

32,412

842,490

283,613

    -

$2,222,232 $2,069,112

25.	 OTHER INCOME
% change 2022 2021

Rental

Sundry

Grant income

Bad debts recoveries

16%

79%

-7%

-69%

203,400

762,967

33,667

78,307

175,950

427,378

36,027

251,576

21% $1,078,341 $890,931

26.	 INCOME

% Change
in income

% Of total
income

2022 2022

% Of total
income

2021 2021

Interest income:
Interest- loans

Interest- investments

Other income:
Rental

Sundry

Grant income

Bad debt recoveries

3%

-11%

16%

79%

-7%

-69%

83%

2%

3%

11%

0%

1%

5,835,859

113,915

203,400

762,967

33,667

78,307

85%

2%

3%

6%

1%

4%

5,685,868

127,330

175,950

427,378

36,027

251,576

Total income 100% $7,028,115 100% $6,704,129
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27.	 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel of the Bank.

2022 2021

i) Salaries and staff benefits $1,013,755 $768,946

ii) Loans receivable from key management personnel and directors $361,999 $773,676

iii) Interest income from key management personnel and directors $9,051 $42,610
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28.	 GENERAL EXPENSES
2022 2021

Salaries, wages and allowances

National Insurance contributions

Pension

Security

Computer expenses

Subscription and donations

Postage

Office expenses

Rent

Advertising

Audit fees

Professional services

Foreign exchange loss

Bank charges

Motor vehicle expenses

Legal fees

Stationery and printing

Telephone and cable

Miscellaneous

Repairs and maintenance

Staff uniforms

Travelling and subsistence

Electricity

Rates and taxes

Staff training

Insurance

Recruitment cost

Staff functions and awards

Cash (overage)/shortage

Corporate image and product development

COVID-19 expenses

1,897,422

76,145

80,147

50,804

81,594

28,498

2,660

30,840

12,000

73,678

35,906

43,785

28,053

12,371

14,975

7,590

69,354

61,354

1,086

38,829

30,334

93,588

89,287

4,077

16,638

39,136

7,922

79,961

(86)

17,701

4,732

1,685,321

68,690

70,002

46,718

83,254

22,573

4,154

32,926

8,000

67,875

32,481

58,699

23,735

12,672

10,194

20,457

56,249

72,679

582

26,101

30,887

88,072

67,428

3,322

3,900

38,168

-

76,218

173

20,444

14,232

$3,030,381 $2,746,206
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